
   

 

 
 
 

Avon Lake Board of Municipal Utilities 
 

AGENDA 
For 

Tuesday  
November 18, 2025 

6:30 PM 
 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. General Matters 

A. Approve Minutes 

B. Public Input (3 minutes each) 

C. Correspondence 

3. Expenditures 

4. Quarterly Financial Update 

5. Rate Study 

6. Collective Bargaining Agreement 

7. Informational Items 

A. Reports/Updates 

1) Project Updates 

2) CUE Report 

3) Member Reports/Miscellaneous 

8. Public Input (3 minutes each) 

9. Executive Session 

10. Adjourn 



 
Avon Lake Regional Water 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Municipal Utilities     
 
From:  Rob Munro 
 
Subject:  Agenda Items – November 18, 2025 
 
Date:  November 14, 2025 
  
 
Item 1: Call to Order 
 
Item 2A: Approve Minutes 
 
Item 2B: Public Input (3 minutes) 
 
Item 2C: Correspondence 
 
Item 3: Expenditures 
 
Item 4: Quarterly Financial Update – WDL 
 
Business & Financial Coordinator Logan will provide a quarterly update to the Board 
regarding budget funds and financials.  Mr. Logan will also provide information to the 
Board regarding the overall financial net position of Avon Lake Regional Water including 
the investment of utility funds, investment in infrastructure assets, and a historical 
reference of the overall financial health of the organization. 
 
Item 5: Rate Study – RKM 
 
In 2023 Raftelis was contracted to provide a rate study and develop a financial model 
for Avon Lake Regional Water.  The CUE asked Raftelis to provide a proposal to update 
the rate study and financial model to capture the updated water system master plan, 
updated capital improvement plan (CIP), and actual fee and rate increases implemented 
since the original rate study was completed in 2023.  Staff is recommending the award 
of the proposal from Raftelis for the not-to-exceed amount of $25,000.00. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to authorize the CUE to execute an agreement with Raftelis for an updated Rate 
Study, Financial Model, and related services, for the not-to-exceed amount of 
$25,000.00. 
 
  



Board of Municipal Utilities 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Item 6: Collective Bargaining Agreement – RKM 
 
The current collective bargaining agreement with union employees is set to expire on 
December 31, 2025.  Staff recently met with members of the union to discuss a new 
agreement.  After negotiations, both parties have tentatively agreed to a new 3-year 
contract.  A summary memorandum is included in the meeting packet documents that 
highlight the important details of the agreement.  Staff is recommending approval of this 
agreement. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to authorize the Chairman of the Board and the CUE to execute the collective 
bargaining agreement dated November 3, 2025 between the Avon Lake Board of 
Municipal Utilities and USW Local 1-865 and to be effective on January 1, 2026. 
 
Item 7A1:       Project Updates – GKY  
 
Power Plant Update: Project Manager Wayne Woodruff confirmed that there has not 
been a change in their scope of work and they are preparing to leave the site.  ALERG 
will be removing their office located on the south side of Lake Road in the coming 
weeks and will be contacting ALRW to discontinue the water and sewer service at that 
site. 
  
WFP Improvements: The Great Lakes Construction Company (GLC) has poured the 
base for the powdered activated carbon silos and secured the mounting brackets.  Silos 
will be installed once the concrete has cured.  Horizontal roof support beams have been 
poured and are now curing.  Once those have cured the roof slab will be poured.  The 
fluoride feed building is being tested with treated drinking water.  Once all setpoints and 
operation of the new equipment is verified, WFP staff will be ordering the first load of 
hydrofluorosilicic acid and cease using sodium silicafluoride by the end of November 
2025. 
 
Techwin Project: ALRW staff received the new probe from Techwin.  It has been 
calibrated, installed and they have verified the probe’s readings with known standards.  
The chiller equipment that maintains the produced sodium hypochlorite at a constant 
temperature is being winterized.   Once that has been completed, normal operation of 
the system and testing of product will resume. 
 
2025 Water Bundle Project: Underground Utilities Inc. (UUI) replaced one of the valves 
on Electric Blvd. will be replacing the second of the eight valves the week of November 
17, 2025.  UUI will be doing restoration work in the Delwood, Inwood and Bellaire 
project area beginning November 17, 2025 as that area has been completed.  Parkland 
waterline work will also begin.  Rosewood Dr. and North Point Dr. will have asphalt 
placed with concrete work beginning the week of November 24, 2025.  
 
Item 7A2: CUE Report – RKM 
 
Item 7A3: Member Reports/Miscellaneous 
 
Item 8:  Public Input (3 minutes) 



Board of Municipal Utilities 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Item 9: Executive Session 
 
The CUE requests to meet in Executive Session as allowed by O.R.C. §121.22 (G) to 
discuss pending or imminent court action.  The CUE does not anticipate any formal 
action by the Board upon reconvening the public meeting. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
I move to meet in Executive Session as allowed by O.R.C. §121.22 (G)(3) to discuss 
pending or imminent court action, and to include the CUE, CUO, and a representative 
from Mansour Gavin. 
 
Item 10: Adjourn 



 

Board of Municipal Utilities 
Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2025 
201 Miller Road 
Avon Lake, Ohio 

 
Call to Order – Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 PM. The meeting was held in-person using web-based 
video conferencing technology.   
 
Present: Mr. Dzwonczyk, Mr. Rickey, Mr. Rush, and Mrs. Schnabel.   
 
Excused: Mr. Mondello 
 
Also present: CUE Munro, CUO Yuronich, Business & Financial Coordinator Logan, Attorney 
Tyler Berry of Mansour-Gavin and ALPD Officer Reiber. 
 
Approve Minutes 
 
Mr. Dzwonczyk presented the Minutes of the October 21, 2025 work session.  With no 
additional changes, additions or corrections noted, Mr. Dzwonczyk ordered that the minutes 
stand and be distributed as submitted. 
 
Mr. Dzwonczyk presented the Minutes of the October 21, 2025 regular meeting.  With no 
additional changes, additions or corrections noted, Mr. Dzwonczyk ordered that the minutes 
stand and be distributed as submitted. 
 
Public Speakers  
 
None. 
 
Correspondence 
 
Mr. Munro informed the Board that the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency completed its 
annual sanitary survey at the Water Filtration Plant and sent a letter to ALRW stating that there 
were no findings.  Mr. Munro commended WFP Manager Gibboney and staff on running a very 
tight ship. 
 
Expenditures 

 
Following review of expenses for funds and amounts as follows, Mr. Rickey moved, Mrs. 
Schnabel seconded, to approve the expenditures of October 17 through October 30, 2025:  
 
 Water Fund 701 $ 192,097.13 
 Distribution Fund 723 $ 129,122.18 
 Wastewater Fund 721 $ 190,442.63 
 Collection Fund 722  $ 107,032.74 
 ETL1 Fund 703 $ 7,250.61 
 ETL2 Fund 762  $ 3,357.96 
 LORCO Fund 749 $ 8,060.23 
 Water Construction Fund 704 $ 4,515.15 
  



 

Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
Cyber Security Resolution 
 
Mr. Dzwonczyk informed the Board that a cybersecurity policy was included in their Board 
Packets.  Mr. Dzwonczyk added that the contents of this policy are not considered a public 
document so the details of measures in place are not discoverable.  Mr. Munro stated that Ohio 
Revised Code (ORC) § 9.64 was enacted through House Bill 96 as a part of the 2026 – 2027 
State of Ohio operating budget and that it requires political subdivisions to formally set and 
adopt standards in regard to cybersecurity threats and ransomware attacks.  Mr. Munro stated 
that ALRW staff and the information technology integrator collaborated to create a policy that 
will be in compliance with ORC § 9.64 and ALRW quality standards.  Mr. Munro added that this 
policy will be auditable annually by the Auditor of State during normal audits.  Mr. Dzwonczyk 
stated that if this resolution is passed, he and Mr. Rush will be signing the resolution so that it 
immediately becomes an official policy. 
 
Mrs. Schnabel moved, Mr. Rickey seconded, for passage of Resolution #2025-04 Cybersecurity 
Policy and direct the CUE to implement a cybersecurity policy in accordance with Ohio Revised 
Code § 9.64 and to be effective from and after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Property Purchase 
 
Mr. Munro informed the Board that there is a parcel of land related to the upcoming ETL project 
that ALRW is interested in purchasing.  Mr. Munro referenced an aerial image from the Lorain 
County Auditor’s website that outlined the parcel.  Mr. Munro stated that ALRW was seeking an 
easement to allow installation of the new ETL water main and that this property is currently 
owned by Kopf Construction.  Mr. Munro added that Kopf Construction offered to donate the 
property as it is currently undevelopable, but Mr. Munro rejected the donation as paying the 
market value is more appropriate.  Mr. Munro stated that the most recent county assessment 
has it listed at $2,500.00.  Mr. Dzwonczyk stated that the sale document denotes the “As-Is 
Condition of the property” and inquired if there were any known faults. Mr. Munro stated that the 
environmental reports were provided by Kopf Construction from when they purchased the 
property and those were reviewed by legal counsel and other professionals to ensure there is 
nothing of concern on the property.  Mr. Dzwonczyk stated that situations like this demonstrate 
why it is important for ALRW to be able to purchase property and that it helps facilitate 
improvements or access to ALRW infrastructure. 
 
Mr. Rush moved, Mr. Rickey seconded, to authorize the CUE to execute a purchase agreement 
with Kopf Construction Corporation for the purchase of Lorain County Permanent Parcel #04-
00-021-000-203 in the amount of $2,500.00. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
 



 

Sludge Hauling & Disposal Bid 
 
Mr. Yuronich stated that staff opened the bids received for sludge hauled from the Water 
Reclamation Facility for 2026.  Mr. Yuronich stated that this will be a three-year contract that 
runs from January 1, 2026 through and including December 31, 2026.  Mr. Yuronich stated that 
there were four bids received and Republic Services was the lowest by far.  Mr. Dzwonczyk 
inquired how much sludge is disposed of each year and Mr. Yuronich responded that it was 
approximately 9,800 tons.  Mr. Dzwonczyk inquired how the new contract pricing for 2026 
compares to the previous contract.  Mr. Yuronich stated that it is a 25% increase.  Mrs. 
Schnabel inquired what it means when it says “exceptions noted by all four bidders.”  Mr. Munro 
stated that in the bid package that was distributed there was an exceptions sheet contained in it.  
Mr. Munro stated that the exception listed on Republic Services’ bid included a disclaimer that if 
governmental regulatory fees were to increase, those costs would be passed on to ALRW.  Mr. 
Munro also added that this language was included in Republic Services’ last contract as well.  
Mr. Munro stated that some of the other bidders’ exceptions related to one not paying prevailing 
wage and one bidder not providing their entire insurance policy but just a certificate stated that 
they carried insurance.  Mr. Munro added that while Republic Services will have a set price for 
all years of the contract, Quasar’s bid included a 2.5% increase each year.  Mrs. Schnabel 
inquired if ALRW was still doing other contracts with Quasar and Mr. Munro responded that 
Quasar has a beneficial reuse contract to haul away material that is in the monofil.  Mr. Munro 
added that disposing of the monofil material this way costs ALRW about half of what the tipping 
fees would be if the monofil material was disposed of at a landfill.  Mr. Rickey inquired if the 
trucks are weighed when they leave the Water Reclamation Facility and Mr. Munro stated that 
the trucks are weighed when they reach the landfill. 
 
Mr. Dzwonczyk moved, Mr. Rush seconded, to authorize the CUE to execute a contract with 
Republic Services effective January 1, 2026 and expiring on December 31. 2028 for the hauling 
and disposal of sanitary sewage sludge per the engineer’s certified bid tabulation dated October 
17, 2025. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Water Meter Bid 
 
Mr. Yuronich informed the Board that staff opened the bids received for ALRW’s water meters 
and that this will be a three-year contract with an option for a fourth year at the same prices.  Mr. 
Yuronich stated that staff is recommending motion to award the contract to Ferguson 
Enterprises.  Mr. Dzwonczyk inquired if they would hold those prices constant throughout the 
contract period.  Mr. Munro stated that they would.  Mr. Munro added that multi-year contracts 
are a big advantage for budgeting as costs are known for the coming years well ahead of time.  
Mr. Rickey inquired if ALRW keeps a supply of meters on the shelves.  Mr. Munro stated that 
ALRW does keep an inventory, especially for the commonly used residential-sized meters and 
that Ferguson also keeps an inventory of meters at their warehouse that are earmarked 
specifically for ALRW.  Mr. Rickey inquired how many suppliers submitted bids.  Mr. Munro 
stated that due to meters requiring infrastructure to be installed specific to the brand of meters, 
only one bid was received.  Mr. Munro added that there have been times in the past where 
Ferguson has invoiced ALRW at less than the contracted amount if the meter prices have come 
down during a contract period. 
 
Mr. Rickey moved, Mrs. Schnabel seconded, to authorize the CUE to execute a contract with 
Ferguson Enterprises, LLC dab Ferguson Waterworks, effective January 1, 2026 and expiring 



 

on December 31, 2028, for the purchase of water meters and other appurtenances per the 
engineer’s certified bid tabulation dated October 8, 2025. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Annual Chemical Supply Bid 
 
Mr. Yuronich informed the Board that ALRW staff had received bids for the chemicals used at 
both of the treatment facilities.  Mr. Yuronich stated that in the years following 2020 staff had 
moved to six-month contracts due to the volatility of the chemical prices.  Mr. Yuronich stated 
that prices have stabilized and staff is going to go back to soliciting annual contracts for these 
chemicals and are recommending award of contracts to the companies listed on the bid 
tabulation presented.  Mr. Munro added that two companies had actually submitted pricing that 
was exactly the same for powdered activated carbon and that after consulting with the law 
director, one of the bids was deemed unresponsive due to their exception sheet.  Mr. Munro 
also added that rather than a line-by-line reading, the contracts can be awarded by referencing 
the engineer’s certified bid tabulation. 
 
Mrs. Schnabel moved, Mr. Rush seconded, to authorize the CUE to execute the necessary 
contracts for the purchase of chemicals per the engineer’s certified bid tabulation dated October 
31, 2025.  These contracts shall take effect January 1, 2026 and expire on December 31, 2026. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Annual Distribution Supplies Bid 
 
Mr. Munro stated that as with the chemical bid, staff solicited bids for distribution supplies for a 
period of one year.  Mr. Munro added that most items increased at a modest amount, the price 
of copper tubing increased notably.  Mr. Munro also added that in the past there have been 
questions about purchasing items that did not receive a bid.  Mr. Munro stated that ALRW has 
complied with the Ohio Revised and the amount to purchase these items is below the bidding 
threshold, ALRW is able to procure those specific items when needed without a contract.  Mr. 
Munro added that vendors do not usually provide prices for special-order items that they would 
then have to stock and guarantee the price. 
 
Mrs. Schnabel moved, Mr. Rickey seconded, to authorize the CUE to execute a contract with 
Core & Main, effective January 1, 2026 and expiring December 31, 2026, for the purchase of 
various water distribution supplies per the engineer’s certified bid tabulation dated October 23, 
2025. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
2026 Budget 
  
Mr. Munro stated that at the October 21, 2025 Work Session the Board was presented with the 
proposed operating budgets for the 2026 budget year.  Mr. Munro stated that none of the 
amounts have changed since that presentation two weeks ago.  Mr. Munro stated that there 
was a memorandum included in the board packets that outlines what amounts need to be 



 

authorized with each fund showing two amounts, personnel and other.  Mr. Munro added that 
these two categories are listed for each of the four major funds, water filtration plant, water 
distribution, sewer treatment plant and sewer collection, along with the two ETL funds, West 
Ridge Interconnect fund, the LORCO custodial fund and construction funds for water and sewer.  
Mr. Dzwonczyk asked Mr. Logan what the total dollar amount across all budgets was.  Mr. 
Logan responded that employee compensation and operating expenses equals twenty-nine 
million dollars.  Mr. Logan stated that when debt service is added the total reaches thirty-seven 
million dollars and when capital improvements in the construction funds are added, the entire 
budget reaches approximately seventy-eight million dollars. 
 
Mr. Dzwonczyk moved, Mr. Rush seconded, for passage of the 2026 budget funds as presented 
in the memorandum dated October 31, 2025.  Furthermore, I direct the Business & Financial 
Coordinator to forward the 2026 budget funds to the Finance Director for inclusion in the 
necessary 2026 appropriations. 
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Project Updates 

Power Plant Update:  Mr. Yuronich stated that subcontractor Trifecta had demobilized and are 
finishing removing their equipment over the next few weeks.  Mr. Yuronich also stated that he 
was informed that ALERG/Charah is still planning on being done with this project by the end of 
November unless there is any additional scope added to their contract. 
 
WFP Improvements:  Mr. Yuronich referenced a picture showing grating covering a meter vault 
informed the Board that a new raw water flow meter was installed.  Mr. Yuronich stated that the 
more accurately the raw water flow is monitored, the more accurate chemical dosing will be.  
Mr. Yuronich referenced a picture showing the resurfacing of the clearwells, flocculation and 
sedimentation basins and informed the Board that this portion of the project will be completed 
withing the next couple of weeks.  Mr. Yuronich referenced another picture that showed the 
progress on the new filters and stated that The Great Lakes Construction Company (GLC) has 
poured the columns to support the roof and has begun forming and pouring the concrete roof.  
Mr. Yuronich stated that Engineered Fluid Dynamics will be onsite the week of November 10, 
2025 to start-up the new fluoride feed building and will be using water to ensure the operation 
and calibration is correct before ALRW staff orders its first delivery of actual chemical. 
 
Techwin Project:  Mr. Yuronich informed the Board that ALRW staff is waiting on the arrival of 
the replacement probe.  Mr. Yuronich added that staff has ordered backup probes to prevent 
this issue from reoccurring in the future.  Mr. Dzwonczyk inquired if the process stream was 
abrasive, corrosive or both and asked if that contributed to the probe failure.  Mr. Yuronich 
stated that it was corrosive and added that if the probe was not properly stored prior to the 
container shipping, that would decrease the life of the probe also.  Mr. Dzwonczyk inquired if 
ALRW staff was assisting Techwin with developing standard operating procedures and 
suggestions for standardizing their equipment for the North American market.  Mr. Yuronich 
responded that ALRW staff is taking lots of notes and documenting things that would help 
standardize equipment.  Mr. Munro added that there have been lots of accommodations 
necessary such as having to source a specially designed step-down transformer to 
accommodate the three-phase, 380-volt power requirement that is standard in the Asian market.  
Mr. Munro added that if the pilot project is successful and ALRW wishes to expand production, 
the project would have to be competitively bid.  Mr. Munro stated that ALRW would write 
specifications into the bid document that would require Techwin to meet ALRW’s requirements.  



 

Mr. Dzwonczyk suggested that Techwin may wish to manufacture in the United States to our 
standards. 

2025 Water Bundle Project:  Mr. Yuronich referenced a picture that showed Underground 
Utilities, Inc. had completed storm sewer work on Rosewood as well as completing storm sewer 
and water main installation on North Point.  Mr. Yuronich added that on Rosewood and 
Dellwood all services have been transferred from the old main to the new line as those streets 
have gone through all required testing and have been accepted as complete by ALRW.  Mr. 
Yuronich stated that tree clearing has been taking place on Parkwood in preparation of the 
upcoming storm sewer work that will be taking place in the coming weeks.  Mr. Dzwonczyk 
inquired if his understanding was correct that ALRW is providing inspection services for the City 
of Avon Lake’s portion of the project as well as ALRW’s and Mr. Yuronich stated that was 
correct. 
 
CUE Report 

Mr. Munro informed the Board that ALRW has a request for qualifications out for information 
technology (IT) vendors.  Mr. Munro stated that this is to establish a contract for ALRW’s IT 
vendor along with ensuring that ALRW’s cybersecurity policy and IT policies are maintained and 
updated as needed.  Mr. Munro added that this contract will also require the vendor to assist in 
implementing an audit for the ISO 27000 certification.  Mr. Munro stated that this goes above 
and beyond what is required by the state managed cybersecurity policy and is part of ALRW’s 
quality initiative.  Mr. Munro stated that the information is required to be submitted by November 
21, 2025 so that staff can evaluate and rank the proposals and select the top two or three 
vendors to select from and then negotiate scope and fees to ultimately bring a proposal to the 
Board with a recommended contract. 

Mr. Munro informed the Board that staff met with HDR regarding design services for the water 
filtration plant and a new water transmission main to the Miller Rd. pump station that is owned 
by Rural Lorain County Water Authority (RLCWA).  Mr. Munro stated that this is related to the 
All-Ohio Future Fund that would deliver water to the mega site or advanced technology campus 
that is located in Lorain County.  Mr. Munro added that this is different than from previous 
expansion projects at the WFP as this will require a new intake and this will require work with 
numerous agencies such as the Ohio Department of Natural Resources, Ohio Environmental 
Protection Agency and United States Army Corps of Engineers.  Mr. Munro stated that ALRW’s 
comments were incorporated into HDR’s draft scope and hopes to have a fee proposal to 
present to the Board at the next meeting.  Mr. Munro added that this would be an amendment to 
the current professional services contract with HDR and that staff has been very pleased with 
HDR’s work. 

Mr. Yuronich informed the Board that he spoke with ALERG/Charah’s project manager about 
site security at the power plant site once they have demobilized.  Mr. Yuronich stated that he 
was informed that they will handle security for as long as they own the property but was not able 
to disclose the details publicly. 
 
Miscellaneous & Member Reports 
None. 

Public Speakers 

None. 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

Executive Session 

The CUE requests to meet in Executive Session as allowed by O.R.C. §121.22 (G)(3) to 
discuss pending or imminent court action.  The CUE does not anticipate any formal action by 
the Board upon reconvening the public meeting. 
 
Mr. Rush moved, Mr. Rickey seconded, to meet in executive session as allowed by ORC 
§121.22 (G)(3) to discuss pending or imminent court action and to include the CUE, the CUO 
and Attorney Tyler Berry of Mansour Gavin. 
 
Ayes (per roll-call vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
The Board entered Executive Session at 7:43 PM 
 
The Board reconvened the public meeting at 8:14 PM 
 
ETL Project 
 
Mr. Rickey inquired about the status of the ETL project.  Mr. Munro stated that property 
easements and/or property acquisition is still in progress.  Property appraisals are expected to 
be delivered to legal counsel in the next couple of weeks.   
 

Adjourn 

As there was no further business, Mrs. Schnabel moved, and Mr. Rush seconded, to adjourn.  
 
Ayes (per voice vote): Dzwonczyk, Rickey, Rush, and Schnabel 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:22 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Approved November 18, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
John Dzwonczyk, Chairman  Robert Munro, Clerk 



Vendor Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Water Employees  $        37,866.05 Salaries PR Post BW 2202523 51102 37,866.05$        920,356.76$               1,305,000.00$      29.47%
2 Water Employees  $             815.75 Part Time Wages PR Post BW 2202523 51105 815.75$             22,512.76$                 26,265.00$           14.29%
3 Water Employees  $          1,062.98 Overtime Wages Plant PR Post BW 2202523 51106.101 1,062.98$          30,591.18$                 38,583.00$           20.71%
4 Water Employees  $             136.46 Overtime Wages Dist/Col PR Post BW 2202523 51106.102 136.46$             1,114.93$                   947.53$                -17.67%
5 Water Employees  $             215.19 Overtime Wages Admin PR Post BW 2202523 51106.103 215.19$             17,423.97$                 18,652.47$           6.59%
6 Water Employees  $             534.54 Overtime Wages Construction PR Post BW 2202523 51106.104 534.54$             8,041.07$                   11,000.00$           26.90%
7 Water Employees  $             327.63 Overtime Wages Office PR Post BW 2202523 51106.105 327.63$             8,364.73$                   10,000.00$           16.35%
8 Water Employees  $             500.00 Shoe Allowance PR Post BW 2202523 52126 500.00$             2,250.00$                   2,250.00$             0.00%
9 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             724.74 Dental - November 2025 52203
10 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             102.78 Vision - November 2025 52203
11 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             129.89 MMO HRA Payment 11/12/25 52203
12 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             296.12 MMO SHARE Payment 11/12/25 52203
13 Water Employees  $           (526.98) Hospitalization PR Post BW 2202523 52203 726.55$             258,848.14$               389,649.00$         33.57%
14 Ohio Public Employees Retirement System  $          5,734.22 OPERS - EMPLOYEE - OPERS Pension - Employee Share* 11/13/25 52209 5,734.22$          146,651.83$               204,841.00$         28.41%
15 Internal Revenue Service  $             587.16 Medicare - FEDERAL - Federal Taxes* 11/13/25 52212 587.16$             15,504.86$                 21,215.00$           26.92%
16 Cintas Corporation  $             215.94 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 1/7 52226 215.94$             1,542.73$                   10,500.00$           85.31%
17 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Munro 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 1/4 53500
18 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Logan 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 1/4 53500 50.00$               13,296.49$                 16,500.00$           19.42%
19 Springbrook Holding Company LLC  $               91.97 Standard Professional Svcs 10/29/25 - WDL 1/5 53602 91.97$               28,586.08$                 31,750.00$           9.97%
20 Indian Springs Manufacturing Co., Inc.  $             406.31 Eqp Mnt - Valve Yokes (6) @ WFP 10/23/25 - RTK 53607
21 APO Pumps and Compressors LLC  $          5,363.52 Eqp Mnt - Hudson Compressor 9/5/25 - RTK 53607 5,769.83$          179,776.89$               197,298.00$         8.88%
22 USALCO, LLC Inc.  $        29,114.39 Op Spl - Alum @ WFP - JRG 53611
23 Carbon Activated Corporation  $        38,803.20 Op Spl - Carbon @ WFP 10/28/25 - JRG 53611
24 Jones Chemicals Inc.  $        10,950.00 Op Spl - Chlorine @ WFP 11/3/25 - JRG 53611 78,867.59$        1,202,632.00$            1,362,329.39$      11.72%
25 Menards  $             350.33 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 1/3 53612 350.33$             15,432.53$                 90,500.00$           82.95%
26 Trico Oxygen Company Inc.  $               48.35 Mnt Gases @ WFP 10/31/25 - JRG 1/2 53612.001
27 Capital One Trade Credit (E&H Hardware)  $                 8.49 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 1/3 53612.001 56.84$               62,899.44$                 66,900.00$           5.98%
28 MASI Environmental Laboratories  $          1,321.60 Lab Testing @ OSHG 10/23/25 - JRG 53613
29 Western Reserve Pure Water  $             138.65 DI Regen @ WFP 10/21/25 - JRG 53613
30 Alloway Corp  $          1,430.00 Lab Analysis @ WFP & OSHG 10/20/25 - GY 1/2 53613
31 Hach Company  $             258.95 Lab Spl @ WFP 11/5/25 - JRG 53613
32 Idexx Distribution, Inc.  $        14,897.25 Lab Spl @ WFP 11/4/25 - JRG 53613
33 Trico Oxygen Company Inc.  $             104.00 Mnt Gases @ WFP 10/31/25 - JRG 2/2 53613 18,150.45$        105,682.16$               108,000.00$         2.15%
34 ComDoc, Inc.  $             248.40 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Metering 10/21/25 - GY 1/4 53701
35 Treasurer, State of Ohio  $             883.55 2024 Financial Audit - 06B73LORA-FA124 53701
36 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          3,081.88 Cnt Svc - Computer Support - October 2025 - GY 53701 4,213.83$          54,779.33$                 70,000.00$           21.74%
37 Xerox Financial Services  $             205.24 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Leases 10/30/25 - WDL 1/4 53701.001 205.24$             2,857.38$                   5,000.00$             42.85%
38 Chronicle Telegram Inc  $             399.58 Cnt Svc - Ads for Chemical Re-Bid 2026 10/23/25 - JAL 1/2 53701.002
39 Lemon Stitch Media LLC  $             875.00 Cnt Svc - Social Media Mgmt - December 2025 - GY 1/4 53701.002
40 Cintas Corporation  $             398.99 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 2/7 53701.002
41 Brakey Energy, Inc.  $             536.25 Mo. Fee for Energy Mgmt - October 2025 - GY 1/4 53701.002 2,209.82$          66,582.07$                 82,980.00$           19.76%
42 Avon Lake Regional Water  $             406.64 Water Used from ETLs - Krebs - October 2025 - GY 53704 406.64$             8,800.04$                   12,100.00$           27.27%
43 Altafiber  $             251.89 Telephone Svc 9/20/25-10/19/25 - GY 1/4 53705
44 AT&T Mobility  $             240.50 Cell Phone Svc 10/17/25 - RKM 1/4 53705
45 Charter Communications  $             139.99 Internet Svc @ WFP 11/1/25-11/30/25 - JRG 53705 632.38$             6,655.61$                   8,725.00$             23.72%
46 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $             975.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 1/7 53708.001
47 Summit Valley Services, Ltd.  $             420.00 Bldg Mnt - Cleaning Svc 11/1/25 - RTK 1/4 53708.001 1,395.00$          50,277.90$                 54,642.37$           7.99%
48 Ritley Huber, LLC  $          5,500.00 Property Appraisal - 33428 Lake Rd 10/16/25 - RKM 53806
49 Ritley Huber, LLC  $          3,250.00 Property Appraisal - Vacant Land - 720 Moore 11/4/25 - WDL 1/3 53806 8,750.00$          124,669.56$               444,567.50$         71.96%
50 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             483.00 Legal Fees - General Matters 10/22/25 - RKM 53907.002 483.00$             11,281.50$                 25,000.00$           54.87%
51 ALRW Fund Transfers  $      826,900.00 Transfer to Sewer Construction Fund 11/5/2025 59703 826,900.00$      826,900.00$               826,900.00$         0.00%

 $      997,255.39 997,255.39$      

NOVEMBER 18, 2025
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

FUND 701 - WATER
AVON LAKE REGIONAL WATER



Vendor  Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 2025-00004127  $        31,241.58 Salaries PR Post BW 2202523 51102 31,241.58$        706,686.74$               835,000.00$         15.37%
2 2025-00004127  $             815.75 Part Time Wages PR Post BW 2202523 51105 815.75$             22,512.28$                 26,265.00$           14.29%
3 2025-00004127  $             136.44 Overtime Wages Distribution PR Post BW 2202523 51106.102 136.44$             13,521.94$                 38,500.00$           64.88%
4 2025-00004127  $               55.74 Overtime Wages Admin PR Post BW 2202523 51106.103 55.74$               4,477.28$                   8,000.00$             44.03%
5 2025-00004127  $             534.55 Overtime Wages Construction PR Post BW 2202523 51106.104 534.55$             7,195.17$                   8,000.00$             10.06%
6 2025-00004127  $             491.42 Overtime Wages Office PR Post BW 2202523 51106.105 491.42$             11,348.16$                 13,742.00$           17.42%
7 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             684.08 Dental - November 2025 52203
8 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $               94.52 Vision - November 2025 52203
9 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             154.99 MMO SHARE Payment 11/5/25 52203
10 MMO HRA / SHARE  $               19.13 MMO HRA Payment 11/12/25 52203
11 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             444.20 MMO SHARE Payment 11/12/25 52203
12 2025-00004128  $           (777.47) Hospitalization PR Post BW 2202523 52203 619.45$             208,099.83$               267,211.00$         22.12%
13 Ohio Public Employees Retirement System  $          4,658.51 OPERS - EMPLOYEE - OPERS Pension - Employee Share* 11/13/25 52209 4,658.51$          110,293.62$               167,161.00$         34.02%
14 Internal Revenue Service  $             465.20 Medicare - FEDERAL - Federal Taxes* 11/13/25 52212 465.20$             11,666.44$                 17,614.00$           33.77%
15 Cintas Corporation  $             241.84 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 6/7 52226 241.84$             3,155.36$                   5,000.00$             36.89%
16 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Munro 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 4/4 53500
17 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Logan 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 4/4 53500 50.00$               13,564.27$                 19,000.00$           28.61%
18 Fedex Corp  $               15.75 Off Spl - Amazon Return 11/5/25 - RTK 2/2 53602
19 SmartBill Ltd.  $          1,053.37 AL Q3 Second Notices 10/31/25 - WDL 2/2 53602
20 Springbrook Holding Company LLC  $               91.97 Standard Professional Svcs 10/29/25 - WDL 4/5 53602 1,161.09$          63,795.31$                 67,250.00$           5.14%
21 WEX Fleet Universal  $          1,656.01 Fuel for Vehicles 10/31/25 - GY 2/2 53604 1,656.01$          20,044.04$                 22,360.00$           10.36%
22 Jack Doheny Companies, Inc  $          2,151.59 Eqp Mnt - Butterfly Valve Installation 10/28/25 - RTK 2/2 53607 2,151.59$          16,646.14$                 32,100.00$           48.14%
23 Zoro Tools Inc  $             231.24 Mnt Spl - Floor Cleaner, Air Freshener, Battery - RTK 2/2 53612
24 Core & Main LP  $          1,211.65 Mnt Spl - Shell Cutters, Wedge Restraints, Brass Saddles  - RTK 53612
25 Grainger  $               44.28 Mnt Spl - Chainsaw Guide Bar, Chain 11/4/25 - RTK 2/2 53612
26 Roberts Surveying Supplies Inc.  $             862.00 Mnt Spl - Flags, Marking Paint, Lath 11/6/25 - JAL 2/2 53612 2,349.17$          215,004.85$               221,600.00$         2.98%
27 Core & Main LP  $        14,206.75 Sheffield Lake Vault - 12" Valves 10/30/25 - RTK 53612.002 14,206.75$        97,710.75$                 91,000.00$           -7.37%
28 Active Plumbing Supplies  $             887.60 Currant Village - 2" Flanges, Adapters, Elbows - RTK 53612.004
29 Trico Oxygen Company Inc.  $               61.12 Mnt Gases @ 201 Miller Rd 10/31/25 - RTK 2/2 53612.004
30 Rock Pile Inc  $                 8.50 Yard Restoration Materials 10/31/25 - RTK 53612.004
31 Capital One Trade Credit (E&H Hardware)  $                 8.49 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 3/3 53612.004 965.71$             72,401.63$                 110,000.00$         34.18%
32 Ferguson Waterworks  $      140,700.00 Meters - 5/8x3/4 Sonata Allegro Fixed (420) 10/20/25 - RTK 53612.005
33 Badger Meter Inc.  $             233.00 Beacon Hosting Svc & Cellular LTE 10/30/25 - RTK 1/2 53612.005 140,933.00$      583,702.62$               585,000.00$         0.22%
34 Bentley Systems Inc.  $          3,027.28 Cnt Svc - OpenFlows Water Advanced SELECT 25-26 - JAL 2/2 53701
35 ComDoc, Inc.  $             248.41 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Metering 10/21/25 - GY 4/4 53701
36 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          3,208.63 Cnt Svc - Computer Support - October 2025 - GY 4/4 53701
37 Badger Meter Inc.  $             604.26 Beacon Hosting Svc & Cellular LTE 10/30/25 - RTK 2/2 53701
38 Geotab USA, Inc.  $               38.50 Diagnostic and Analysis (4 Vehicles) 10/31/25 - WDL 2/2 53701 7,127.08$          58,249.03$                 105,900.00$         45.00%
39 Xerox Financial Services  $             205.24 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Leases 10/30/25 - WDL 4/4 53701.001 205.24$             2,257.63$                   7,100.00$             68.20%
40 Merchant Bank Fees - Utilities  $          2,268.15 Monthly Merchant Fees for Utilities 11/3/25 53701.002
41 Complete Concrete  $             900.00 Cnt Svc - Saw Cut - Lear @ Eastview - RTK 53701.002
42 Treasurer, State of Ohio  $             774.90 2024 Financial Audit - 06B73LORA-FA124 53701.002
43 Lemon Stitch Media LLC  $             875.00 Cnt Svc - Social Media Mgmt - December 2025 - GY 4/4 53701.002
44 Xpress Bill Pay  $          1,869.85 October 2025 Fees 53701.002
45 Brakey Energy, Inc.  $             536.25 Mo. Fee for Energy Mgmt - October 2025 - GY 4/4 53701.002
46 Cintas Corporation  $             147.89 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 7/7 53701.002 7,372.04$          71,314.18$                 134,620.00$         47.03%
47 Columbia Gas  $             344.56 gas svc @ 201 Miller Rd 9/25/25-10/24/25 - GY 53702.002 344.56$             14,348.37$                 30,700.00$           53.26%
48 Altafiber  $             251.89 Telephone Svc 9/20/25-10/19/25 - GY 4/4 53705
49 AT&T Mobility  $             240.50 Cell Phone Svc 10/17/25 - RKM 4/4 53705
50 Charter Communications  $               95.00 Internet Svc @ 201 Miller Rd 11/1/25-11/30/25 - RTK 2/2 53705 587.39$             6,725.67$                   18,975.00$           64.56%
51 Fisher Auto Parts, Inc  $               88.11 Eqp Mnt - Motor Oil, Catalyst, WD-40 10/30/25 - RTK 2/2 53707 88.11$               8,522.92$                   16,700.00$           48.96%
52 FLB Service Co. Corp.  $             164.75 Bldg Mnt - Garage Door Repairs @ 201 Miller Rd 11/3/25 - RTK 2/2 53708
53 Summit Valley Services, Ltd.  $             387.50 Bldg Mnt - Cleaning Svc 11/1/25 - RTK 4/4 53708 552.25$             24,596.52$                 27,500.00$           10.56%
54 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $          1,875.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 4/7 53708.003 1,875.00$          22,335.77$                 39,500.00$           43.45%
55 Zoro Tools Inc  $             892.49 Eqp - Pick Up Truck Drawer System 11/4/25 - RTK 2/2 53804 892.49$             15,140.89$                 120,000.00$         87.38%
56 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          1,907.45 Eqp - Rugged Laptop - C. Busse 11/6/25 - GY 2/2 53804.001 1,907.45$          7,711.16$                   14,600.00$           47.18%
57 Sixmo Inc.  $        16,461.25 ALRW Admin Building Expansion 10/31/25 - GY 2/2 53806 16,461.25$        66,104.17$                 145,000.00$         54.41%
58 John T. Mayer  $             125.00 Reimbursement - Butts Plumbing Repair 10/28/25 - JAL 53901 125.00$             225.00$                      15,000.00$           98.50%
59 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             483.00 Legal Fees - General Matters 10/22/25 - RKM 4/4 53907.002 483.00$             25,703.50$                 50,000.00$           48.59%
60 ALRW Fund Transfers  $        37,936.00 Transfer to West Ridge Interconnect 11/5/25 59711 37,936.00$        37,936.00$                 37,936.00$           0.00%

 $      278,690.66 278,690.66$      

FUND 723 - DISTRIBUTION
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

NOVEMBER 18, 2025



Vendor Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Wastewater Employees  $        36,402.82 Salaries PR Post BW 2202523 51102 36,402.82$        904,956.67$               1,173,157.89$      22.86%
2 Wastewater Employees  $             815.75 Part Time Wages PR Post BW 2202523 51105 815.75$             22,687.42$                 26,265.00$           13.62%
3 Wastewater Employees  $          2,147.94 Overtime Wages Plant PR Post BW 2202523 51106.101 2,147.94$          29,066.93$                 46,052.47$           36.88%
4 Wastewater Employees  $             136.46 Overtime Wages Dist/Col PR Post BW 2202523 51106.102 136.46$             1,371.59$                   2,947.53$             53.47%
5 Wastewater Employees  $               55.73 Overtime Wages Admin PR Post BW 2202523 51106.103 55.73$               4,491.13$                   8,000.00$             43.86%
6 Wastewater Employees  $             534.54 Overtime Wages Construction PR Post BW 2202523 51106.104 534.54$             7,887.04$                   10,000.00$           21.13%
7 Wastewater Employees  $          3,852.99 Employee Time Buy Back PR Post BW 2202523 52115 3,852.99$          110,069.00$               108,034.63$         -1.88%
8 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             819.46 Dental - November 2025 52203
9 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             111.10 Vision - November 2025 52203
10 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             207.26 MMO HRA Payment 11/12/25 52203
11 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             288.97 MMO SHARE Payment 11/12/25 52203
12 Wastewater Employees  $           (868.38) Hospitalization PR Post BW 2202523 52203 558.41$             293,707.65$               323,915.00$         9.33%
13 Ohio Public Employees Retirement System  $          6,152.50 OPERS - EMPLOYEE - OPERS Pension - Employee Share* 11/13/25 52209 6,152.50$          142,510.92$               193,222.11$         26.25%
14 Internal Revenue Service  $             615.13 FEDERAL - Federal Taxes* 11/13/25 52212 615.13$             15,602.87$                 16,196.00$           3.66%
15 Lopez, Jeffrey  $             157.86 Reimbursement - Class 3 Wastewater License - RH 53500
16 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Munro 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 2/4 53500
17 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Logan 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 2/4 53500 207.86$             12,330.87$                 18,306.00$           32.64%
18 Springbrook Holding Company LLC  $               91.97 Standard Professional Svcs 10/29/25 - WDL 2/5 53602 91.97$               20,186.88$                 25,000.00$           19.25%
19 The K Company  $          4,466.05 Eqp Mnt - AC Unit Repair @ WRF - RH 53607 4,466.05$          83,524.09$                 102,500.00$         18.51%
20 Zoro Tools Inc  $          1,075.14 Mnt Spl - C-Fold Paper Towels, Air Filters - RTK 53612
21 Menards  $               44.37 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 53612 1,119.51$          8,356.32$                   14,000.00$           40.31%
22 Trico Oxygen Company Inc.  $               37.35 Mnt Gases @ WRF 10/31/25 - RH 53612.001 37.35$               9,822.04$                   13,000.00$           24.45%
23 Alloway Corp  $             769.00 Lab Analysis @ WRF - RH 53613
24 Enviroscience Inc.  $          2,032.00 Bioassay Testing @ WRF 10/14/25 - RH 53613
25 Jones & Henry Laboratories Inc.  $             300.00 Lab Testing @ WRF - RH 53613 3,101.00$          70,649.02$                 87,500.00$           19.26%
26 Treasurer, State of Ohio  $             883.55 2024 Financial Audit - 06B73LORA-FA124 53701
27 ComDoc, Inc.  $             248.41 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Metering 10/21/25 - GY 2/4 53701
28 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          3,081.87 Cnt Svc - Computer Support - October 2025 - GY 2/4 53701 4,213.83$          60,397.99$                 127,500.00$         52.63%
29 Xerox Financial Services  $             205.24 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Leases 10/30/25 - WDL 2/4 53701.001 205.24$             2,257.63$                   4,000.00$             43.56%
30 Chronicle Telegram Inc  $             399.58 Cnt Svc - Ads for Chemical Re-Bid 2026 10/23/25 - JAL 2/2 53701.002
31 Lemon Stitch Media LLC  $             875.00 Cnt Svc - Social Media Mgmt - December 2025 - GY 2/4 53701.002
32 Treasurer, State of Ohio  $          5,200.00 NPDES 2025 Annual Discharge Fee 11/6/25 - RH 53701.002
33 Cintas Corporation  $             479.77 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 3/7 53701.002
34 Brakey Energy, Inc.  $             536.25 Mo. Fee for Energy Mgmt - October 2025 - GY 2/4 53701.002 7,490.60$          66,472.84$                 71,000.00$           6.38%
35 Engie Resources  $        17,178.79 elec svc charge @ WRF 9/4/25-10/2/25 - GY 53703.001
36 Illuminating Company  $          7,348.64 elec svc @ Waterbury Ave 10/3/25-11/4/25 - GY 53703.001 24,527.43$        276,014.57$               263,550.00$         -4.73%
37 Illuminating Company  $               97.96 elec svc @ 758 Jaycox Rd Sewer 10/4/25-11/4/25 - GY 53703.004 97.96$               1,046.10$                   1,350.00$             22.51%
38 Altafiber  $             251.90 Telephone Svc 9/20/25-10/19/25 - GY 2/4 53705
39 AT&T Mobility  $             240.51 Cell Phone Svc 10/17/25 - RKM 2/4 53705
40 Charter Communications  $               59.99 Internet Svc @ WRF 11/1/25-11/30/25 - GY 53705 552.40$             5,925.62$                   9,700.00$             38.91%
41 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $             975.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 2/7 53708.001
42 Summit Valley Services, Ltd.  $             225.00 Bldg Mnt - Cleaning Svc 11/1/25 - RTK 2/4 53708.001 1,200.00$          39,129.53$                 45,000.00$           13.05%
43 Pelton Environmental Products, Inc.  $          7,114.31 Eqp - Rotor, Stator-Halfs @ WRF 10/30/25 - RH 53804 7,114.31$          49,164.13$                 99,500.00$           50.59%
44 Burns & McDonnell Engineering Co. Inc.  $          9,333.32 Professional Eng Svcs - Sewer Asset Valuation 8/25/25 - GY 53806 9,333.32$          36,094.31$                 34,472.76$           -4.70%
45 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $          1,577.00 Legal Fees - Terrance Ryan 10/14/25 - RKM 1/2 53907.002
46 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             483.00 Legal Fees - General Matters 10/22/25 - RKM 2/4 53907.002
47 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             560.00 Legal Fees - Lateral Loan Collection Letters 10/22/2025 - RKM 53907.002 2,620.00$          11,042.50$                 25,000.00$           55.83%
48 ALRW Fund Transfers  $      250,000.00 Transfer to Water Construction Fund 11/5/25 59701 250,000.00$      250,000.00$               250,000.00$         0.00%

 $      367,651.10 367,651.10$      

OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025
NOVEMBER 18, 2025

FUND 721 - WASTEWATER



Vendor Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Collections Employees  $        33,875.07 Salaries PR Post BW 2202523 51102 33,875.07$        754,606.58$               855,000.00$         11.74%
2 Collections Employees  $             815.75 Part Time Wages PR Post BW 2202523 51105 815.75$             21,860.00$                 26,265.00$           16.77%
3 Collections Employees  $             756.82 Overtime Wages Plant PR Post BW 2202523 51106.101 756.82$             12,166.11$                 11,500.00$           -5.79%
4 Collections Employees  $             136.46 Overtime Wages Collections PR Post BW 2202523 51106.102 136.46$             12,789.21$                 41,000.00$           68.81%
5 Collections Employees  $               55.73 Overtime Wages Admin PR Post BW 2202523 51106.103 55.73$               4,336.09$                   5,742.00$             24.48%
6 Collections Employees  $             534.54 Overtime Wages Construction PR Post BW 2202523 51106.104 534.54$             7,097.00$                   8,000.00$             11.29%
7 Collections Employees  $             491.43 Overtime Wages Office PR Post BW 2202523 51106.105 491.43$             11,126.75$                 13,000.00$           14.41%
8 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             852.48 Dental - November 2025 52203
9 Ameritas Life Insurance Co.  $             118.48 Vision - November 2025 52203
10 MMO HRA / SHARE  $               19.13 MMO HRA Payment 11/12/25 52203
11 MMO HRA / SHARE  $             444.20 MMO SHARE Payment 11/12/25 52203
12 Collections Employees  $           (890.51) Hospitalization PR Post BW 2202523 52203 543.78$             239,922.55$               332,725.00$         27.89%
13 Ohio Public Employees Retirement System  $          5,133.23 OPERS - EMPLOYEE - OPERS Pension - Employee Share* 11/13/25 52209 5,133.23$          118,380.30$               158,865.00$         25.48%
14 Internal Revenue Service  $             506.67 Medicare - FEDERAL - Federal Taxes* 11/13/25 52212 506.67$             12,391.90$                 16,298.00$           23.97%
15 Cintas Corporation  $             241.84 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 4/7 52226 241.84$             3,155.35$                   5,500.00$             42.63%
16 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Munro 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 3/4 53500
17 Ohio GFOA  $               25.00 Edu - Ohio GFOA Membership Renewals Logan 25-26 11/3/25 - GY 3/4 53500 50.00$               13,539.76$                 13,861.50$           2.32%
18 Fedex Corp  $               15.76 Off Spl - Amazon Return 11/5/25 - RTK 1/2 53602
19 SmartBill Ltd.  $             351.12 AL Q3 Second Notices 10/31/25 - WDL 1/2 53602
20 Springbrook Holding Company LLC  $               91.96 Standard Professional Svcs 10/29/25 - WDL 3/5 53602 458.84$             36,077.71$                 39,000.00$           7.49%
21 WEX Fleet Universal  $          1,656.02 Fuel for Vehicles 10/31/25 - GY 1/2 53604 1,656.02$          20,044.06$                 28,980.00$           30.83%
22 Jack Doheny Companies, Inc  $          2,151.59 Eqp Mnt - Butterfly Valve Installation 10/28/25 - RTK 1/2 53607 2,151.59$          26,819.06$                 27,000.00$           0.67%
23 Zoro Tools Inc  $             231.25 Mnt Spl - Floor Cleaner, Air Freshener, Battery - RTK 1/2 53612
24 Grainger  $               44.29 Mnt Spl - Chainsaw Guide Bar, Chain 11/4/25 - RTK 1/2 53612
25 Roberts Surveying Supplies Inc.  $             862.00 Mnt Spl - Flags, Marking Paint, Lath 11/6/25 - JAL 1/2 53612 1,137.54$          12,545.72$                 26,500.00$           52.66%
26 Trico Oxygen Company Inc.  $               61.13 Mnt Gases @ 201 Miller Rd 10/31/25 - RTK 1/2 53612.004
27 Westview Concrete Corporation  $             513.75 Concrete Repairs @ 226 Cherry Ln 10/31/25 - RTK 53612.004
28 Capital One Trade Credit (E&H Hardware)  $                 8.49 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 2/3 53612.004 583.37$             20,214.97$                 24,780.00$           18.42%
29 Bentley Systems Inc.  $          3,027.28 Cnt Svc - OpenFlows Water Advanced SELECT 25-26 - JAL 1/2 53701
30 ComDoc, Inc.  $             248.41 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Metering 10/21/25 - GY 3/4 53701
31 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          3,208.64 Cnt Svc - Computer Support - October 2025 - GY 53701
32 Geotab USA, Inc.  $               38.50 Diagnostic and Analysis (4 Vehicles) 10/31/25 - WDL 1/2 53701 6,522.83$          45,537.78$                 46,500.00$           2.07%
33 Xerox Financial Services  $             205.23 Cnt Svc - Xerox Copier Leases 10/30/25 - WDL 3/4 53701.001 205.23$             2,257.60$                   6,100.00$             62.99%
34 Merchant Bank Fees - Utilities  $          2,268.14 Monthly Merchant Fees for Utilities 11/3/25 53701.002
35 Lemon Stitch Media LLC  $             875.00 Cnt Svc - Social Media Mgmt - December 2025 - GY 3/4 53701.002
36 Treasurer, State of Ohio  $          2,030.50 2024 Financial Audit - 06B73LORA-FA124 53701.002
37 Xpress Bill Pay  $          1,869.85 October 2025 Fees 53701.002
38 Cintas Corporation  $             147.89 Mat Rental & Clothing - October 2025 - GY 5/7 53701.002
39 Brakey Energy, Inc.  $             536.25 Mo. Fee for Energy Mgmt - October 2025 - GY 3/4 53701.002 7,727.63$          37,240.30$                 42,100.00$           11.54%
40 Columbia Gas  $               54.71 gas svc @ 641 Lear Rd 10/2/25-10/31/25 - GY 53702.002 54.71$               546.05$                      800.00$                31.74%
41 Columbia Gas  $               54.71 gas svc @ 671 Bridgeside 9/29/25-10/28/25 - GY 53702.003
42 Columbia Gas  $               57.52 gas svc @ 100 Woodbridge Way 9/29/25-10/28/25 - GY 53702.003 112.23$             1,750.82$                   2,000.00$             12.46%
43 Illuminating Company  $             106.06 elec svc @ Woodbridge Way 10/4/25-11/5/25 - GY 53703.003
44 Illuminating Company  $             102.06 elec svc @ 641 Lear Rd 10/3/25-11/5/25 - GY 53703.003
45 Illuminating Company  $               98.44 elec svc @ 671 Bridgeside PS 10/4/25-11/4/25 - GY 53703.003 306.56$             40,415.44$                 49,400.00$           18.19%
46 Altafiber  $             251.90 Telephone Svc 9/20/25-10/19/25 - GY 3/4 53705
47 Charter Communications  $             218.95 Internet Svc @ 32789 Lake Rd 9/24/25-11/23/25 - RTK 53705
48 AT&T Mobility  $             240.50 Cell Phone Svc 10/17/25 - RKM 3/4 53705
49 Charter Communications  $               94.99 Internet Svc @ 201 Miller Rd 11/1/25-11/30/25 - RTK 1/2 53705 806.34$             7,898.54$                   18,000.00$           56.12%
50 Fisher Auto Parts, Inc  $               88.10 Eqp Mnt - Motor Oil, Catalyst, WD-40 10/30/25 - RTK 53707 88.10$               8,564.55$                   17,000.00$           49.62%
51 FLB Service Co. Corp.  $             164.75 Bldg Mnt - Garage Door Repairs @ 201 Miller Rd 11/3/25 - RTK 1/2 53708
52 Summit Valley Services, Ltd.  $             387.50 Bldg Mnt - Cleaning Svc 11/1/25 - RTK 3/4 53708 552.25$             24,596.52$                 30,000.00$           18.01%
53 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $             750.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 3/7 53708.002 750.00$             7,500.00$                   35,000.00$           78.57%
54 Zoro Tools Inc  $             892.50 Eqp - Pick Up Truck Drawer System 11/4/25 - RTK 1/2 53804 892.50$             15,140.89$                 20,000.00$           24.30%
55 Technology Management Solutions Inc  $          1,907.45 Eqp - Rugged Laptop - C. Busse 11/6/25 - GY 1/2 53804.001 1,907.45$          8,904.38$                   14,500.00$           38.59%
56 Sixmo Inc.  $        16,461.25 ALRW Admin Building Expansion 10/31/25 - GY 1/2 53806 16,461.25$        65,561.66$                 200,000.00$         67.22%
57 31810 Lake Rd, LLC  $          1,318.65 Refund for Correction of Bill 11/5/25 - WDL 53901 1,318.65$          1,418.65$                   5,000.00$             71.63%
58 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $          1,577.00 Legal Fees - Terrance Ryan 10/14/25 - RKM 2/2 53907.002
59 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             483.00 Legal Fees - General Matters 10/22/25 - RKM 3/4 53907.002 2,060.00$          26,212.50$                 50,000.00$           47.58%

 $        88,894.41 88,894.41$        

FUND 722 - COLLECTIONS
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

NOVEMBER 18, 2025



Vendor Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Core & Main LP  $          4,469.60 ETLs - JCM Repair Bands w/CS Straps 11/5/25 - RTK 1/2 53612 4,469.60$          58,790.90$                 76,000.00$           22.64%
2 Core & Main LP  $          5,198.20 ETL1 - Hydrant Near Rock Pile 10/30/25 - RTK 53612.004 5,198.20$          14,471.84$                 19,000.00$           23.83%
3 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             210.00 Legal Fees - ETLs 10/14/25 - RKM 1/2 53701
4 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $             125.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 5/7 53701 335.00$             110,540.04$               89,675.00$           -23.27%
5 Engie  Resources  $          1,309.50 elec svc charge @ 800 Moore Rd - November 2025 - GY 53703.003 1,309.50$          191,610.59$               235,384.00$         18.60%
6 Ohio Edison  $               83.87 elec svc @ Lear @ Mills 10/4/25-11/4/25 - GY 53703.004
7 Ohio Edison  $               81.58 elec svc @ Lear @ Chstnt 9/4/25-11/1/25 - GY 53703.004
8 Ohio Edison  $               81.90 elec svc @ Root @ Sprag 10/2/25-10/31/25 - GY 53703.004
9 Ohio Edison  $               81.39 elec svc @ Butternut @ Root 9/3/25-10/31/25 - GY 53703.004 328.74$             9,531.38$                   12,000.00$           20.57%
10 Avon Lake Regional Water  $      166,471.41 Water Used from ETL1 - October 2025 - GY 53704 166,471.41$      2,007,109.06$            2,230,000.00$      10.00%
11 Ritley Huber, LLC  $          1,625.00 Property Appraisal - Vacant Land - 720 Moore 11/4/25 - WDL 2/3 53806 1,625.00$          55,330.38$                 226,913.89$         75.62%

 $      179,737.45 179,737.45$      

Vendor Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Core & Main LP  $          4,469.60 ETLs - JCM Repair Bands w/CS Straps 11/5/25 - RTK 2/2 53612 4,469.60$          75,245.52$                 87,600.00$           14.10%
2 Seeley, Savidge, Ebert & Gourash Co., LPA  $             126.00 Legal Fees - ETLs 10/14/25 - RKM 2/2 53701
3 Randall's Lawn Care Inc.  $             125.00 Weekly Lawn Maintenance 2025 - 8 of 8 10/29/25 - RTK 6/7 53701 251.00$             38,919.62$                 45,000.00$           13.51%
4 Ohio Edison  $               49.03 elec svc @ 15201 Island Rd OAL 10/1/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.003
5 Engie Resources  $        29,235.66 elec svc charge @ various ETL2 Locations 10/29/25 - GY 53703.003
6 Ohio Edison  $          5,833.97 elec svc @ 15201 Island Rd 9/29/25-10/28/25 - GY 53703.003 35,118.66$        389,675.75$               502,445.84$         22.44%
7 Ohio Edison  $               83.80 elec svc @ 37980 Barres Rd 10/4/25-11/4/25 - GY 53703.004
8 Ohio Edison  $             101.79 elec svc @ 36550 Chestnut Ridge Rd 10/2/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.004
9 Ohio Edison  $               83.59 elec svc @ 37780 Center Ridge Rd 10/2/25-10/31/25 - GY 53703.004 269.18$             4,954.36$                   10,000.00$           50.46%
10 Avon Lake Regional Water  $      489,394.92 Water Used from ETL2 - October 2025 - GY 53704 489,394.92$      5,923,394.54$            5,918,600.00$      -0.08%
11 Ritley Huber, LLC  $          1,625.00 Property Appraisal - Vacant Land - 720 Moore 11/4/25 - WDL 3/3 53806 1,625.00$          54,905.37$                 274,475.63$         80.00%
12 ALRW Fund Transfers  $      111,355.00 Transfer to ETL1 11/5/25 59707 111,355.00$      111,355.00$               111,355.00$         0.00%

 $      642,483.36 642,483.36$      

Vendor  Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 Merchant Bank Fees - LORCO  $             260.89 Monthly Merchant Fees for LORCO 11/3/25 53701
2 Xpress Bill Pay  $          1,246.55 October 2025 Fees 53701 1,507.44$          8,908.67$                   17,000.00$           47.60%
3 Data Command Corp  $          3,564.00 Cnt Svc - LORCO Lift Station Renewals 2025-2026 - RTK 53701.002 3,564.00$          16,804.22$                 14,000.00$           -20.03%
4 Ohio Edison  $          1,161.07 elec svc @ 38393 Royalton Rd 9/30/25-10/29/25 - GY 53703.001
5 Ohio Edison  $             259.51 elec svc @ 9845 Avon Belden Rd 10/2/25-10/31/25 - GY 53703.001 1,420.58$          25,549.00$                 26,926.75$           5.12%
6 Ohio Edison  $               84.25 elec svc @ 36780 Giles 8/28/25-10/28/25 - GY 53703.003
7 Ohio Edison  $               85.41 elec svc @ 10301 Reed Rd 10/2/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.003
8 Ohio Edison  $             107.69 elec svc @ 33930 Cooley Rd 10/1/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.003
9 Ohio Edison  $               84.63 elec svc @ 12901 Avon Belden Rd 8/30/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.003
10 Ohio Edison  $               93.25 elec svc @ 12169 Avon Belden 10/1/25-10/30/25 - GY 53703.003
11 Ohio Edison  $               82.09 elec svc @ 10920 Hawke Rd 10/2/25-11/1/25 - GY 53703.003 537.32$             21,195.27$                 24,000.00$           11.69%
12 SmartBill Ltd.  $          1,272.18 LORCO Bills - Print & Postage - October 2025 - WDL 53760
13 Springbrook Holding Company LLC  $               40.88 Standard Professional Svcs 10/29/25 - WDL 5/5 53760 1,313.06$          63,079.68$                 75,000.00$           15.89%
14 ALRW Fund Transfers  $      140,294.00 Transfer to Sewer Construction Fund 11/5/25 59703 140,294.00$      140,294.00$               140,294.00$         0.00%

 $      148,636.40 148,636.40$      

FUND 762 - ETL2
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

NOVEMBER 18, 2025

FUND 703 - ETL1
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

NOVEMBER 18, 2025

FUND 749 - LORCO
OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025

NOVEMBER 18, 2025



Vendor  Amount Description G/L Acct G/L Sum YTD Transactions Budget % of Budget Remaining
1 HDR, Inc.  $        40,344.22 Bldg Imp - WFP Improvement Construction Svcs 10/13/25 - JAL 55003.002
2 SOS Integration Services Corp  $      153,000.00 WFP Improvements - PLC Control Panel Filters 10/28/25 - WDL 55003.002 193,344.22$      11,738,629.58$          15,500,000.00$    24.27%
3 Alloway Corp  $             105.00 Lab Analysis @ WFP 10/20/25 - GY 2/2 55003.003
4 Glatte Inc.  $             782.84 OSHG Project - Pyromation Thermowell 9/9/25 - RTK 55003.003
5 Menards  $               37.12 Mnt Spl - October 2025 - RTK 3/3 55003.003 924.96$             187,326.29$               214,000.00$         12.46%
6 Underground Utilities Inc  $        51,590.20 2025 Water Bundle - Part A1 55007
7 Underground Utilities Inc  $      954,056.56 2025 Water Bundle - Part A2 55007
8 Ferguson Waterworks  $      140,700.00 Bundle Project - 5/8x3/4 Sonata Allegros (420) 10/20/25 - RTK 55007 1,146,346.76$    2,422,225.88$            2,959,485.83$      18.15%

 $   1,340,615.94 1,340,615.94$    

OCTOBER 31 - NOVEMBER 13, 2025
NOVEMBER 18, 2025

FUND 704 - WATER CONSTRUCTION



























 

19 Garfield Place 
Suite 500 
Cincinnati, OH 45202 

Phone 513 . 818 . 4145 
Fax 704 . 373 . 1113 
 

www.raftelis.com 

    

 

August 4, 2025 

 

Mr. Robert Munro 

Chief Utilities Executive  

Avon Lake Regional Water 

201 Miller Road 

Avon Lake, Ohio 44012  

 

Subject: Rate Model Update and On-Call Financial Services Proposed Scope of Services  

 

Dear Mr. Munro: 

 

Raftelis is pleased to submit this proposed scope of services related to providing continued as-needed financial 

planning and rate support to Avon Lake Regional Water (ALRW). Raftelis developed a long-term financial plan 

and rate study for ALRW in 2021. This effort included the development of a comprehensive, Microsoft Excel-

based, financial planning and rate model which was a formal deliverable of the study. ALRW has requested that 

Raftelis update the model to reflect recent changes and updated system information and needs. The proposed 

scope of services identified in this letter are based on conversations with ALRW staff and our professional 

opinions based on performing similar efforts for other utilities throughout the country.  

 

All work performed under this agreement will be at the direction of ALRW. This agreement provides for a broad 

potential scope of services which are listed below. Actual work products and deliverables will be based on the 

requests from ALRW.  

 

Proposed Scope of Services 

Task 1. Update Financial Planning Model 

Raftelis will work with ALRW staff to update the financial planning model that is used to drive 

budgetary and rate decisions to provide a streamlined, user-friendly model. This task includes: 

a. Updating budget and capital data driving the financial forecast 

b. Incorporate projects from the updated ALRW master plan into the model 

c. Update the model to incorporate two new subfunds that have been established since the original 

study 

d. Perform any necessary “year-to-date” analysis for in-year performance measurement 

e. Workshops with ALRW Staff to review and update model 

f. Workshops with the Board to review financial forecast  

g. Any miscellaneous model support or changes as requested ALRW 

 

 

Task 2. Miscellaneous Financial & Management Support 

Raftelis will be available for on-call services to support the financial and management needs of 

ALRW staff throughout the engagement. This task could involve the development of a financial 

policies document, rate comparisons or other benchmarking, or a strategic communications plan. 

As well as the financial components discussed in Tasks 1 and 2, Raftelis has expertise related to 

the following, all of which would be available at ALRW’s request. 

 



Mr. Robert Munro 
Avon Lake Regional Water  
On-Call Financial Services Proposed Scope of Services 

August 4, 2025 
Page 2 

 

  

 Affordability and Customer Assistance Programs  Organizational Assessments 

 Benchmarking  Performance Management 

 Business Process Improvement  Risk Analysis 

 Custom Software & Tools  Stormwater Utility Development 

 Data Management  Strategic Planning 

 Debt Issuance Support  Utility Valuation 

 

As stated previously, any work performed under this agreement will be at the direction of ALRW. The project 

fees are based on our standard hourly billing rates for professional and administrative personnel assigned to the 

project, plus direct expenses.  Expenses would relate to travel costs, computers, postage, supplies, etc.  The project 

will be managed by me with support provided by consultants from the Cincinnati office.  

 

It is our practice to bill monthly for fees and expenses as they are incurred during a project. This engagement will 

be based on actual time and materials dedicated to the project, with total fees and expenses limited to a not-to-

exceed amount of $25,000 unless specific approval for an adjustment in scope is approved by ALRW. The hourly 

billing rates that will be used for this project are included as Attachment 1.  

 

If the proposed project scope is acceptable to ALRW, please sign in the space provided below and return a copy 

for our records.  Should you have any questions or need additional documentation, please do not hesitate to 

contact us at (513) 818-4145.  We appreciate the opportunity to provide assistance to the Avon Lake Regional 

Water and look forward to continuing our relationship in the future. 

 
 

Sincerely, 

RAFTELIS 

 

 

 

 

Joseph Crea 

Vice President 

 

We accept the terms of this proposed engagement letter: 

 
 

 __________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Signature Name of authorized agent 
 
 
 __________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Date Title 
 

 
 
  



Mr. Robert Munro 
Avon Lake Regional Water  
On-Call Financial Services Proposed Scope of Services 

August 4, 2025 
Page 3 

 

  

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1.  

 
2025 Professional Billing Rates 
 

 
 


	ALRW_2025RateUpdateProposal_Aug42025.pdf
	ALRW September 2025 Financial Statements.pdf
	September Narrative.pdf
	September 2025 Financial Statements - 2.pdf

	110425 Draft Meeting Minutes.pdf
	111825 Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA
	Tuesday
	November 18, 2025
	6:30 PM

	111825 WriteUp.pdf
	Expenses - 111825.pdf
	rptAccumulatedTransaction


